
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 
PUBLIC HEALTH DIVISION 
Drinking Water Services  

 

 Kate Brown, Governor 

800 NE Oregon Street, Ste 640 
Portland, OR 97232 

Phone: (971) 673-0405 
Fax: (971) 673-0694 

www.healthoregon.org/DWP 
 

January 9, 2020 
 
Ed Hodges, PE 
Curran-McLeod, Inc. 
6655 S.W. Hampton St., Suite 210 
Portland, OR 97223 
 
Re: Falcon Cove Beach Water District (PWS #00045) – New Well L132105  

Curran-McLeod Project # 1530 
 Conditional Approval (PR #77-2019).  SRF SD# 19-242 
   
Dear Mr. Hodges: 
 
Thank you for your submittal to the Oregon Health Authority’s Drinking Water Services 
(DWS) of plan review information for the new well on behalf of the Falcon Cove Beach 
Water District.   
 
On May 6, 2019, our office received a site map showing the location of a new well 
proposed for the District and a preliminary water well construction diagram.  A plan 
review fee of $825 and Land Use Compatibility Statement (LUCS) was received on May 
6, 2019.    
 
On January 7th - 8th , 2020 we received the plans showing how the well is to be connected 
to the system, revised lease agreement with OPRD indicating hazards will be prohibited 
within 100-ft of the well, approved waiver of the Geologic Hazard Overlay provisions 
issued by Clatsop County, and LUCS approved by Clatsop County.  IOC and VOC results 
were also submitted.   
 
SRF funds under SD# 19-242 are being used for the wellhouse, yard piping, residual 
disinfection system, and related appurtenances for which a Categorical Exclusion from 
further environmental review was granted on January 7, 2020.   
 
The well is to be designated SRC-CA Well #1 (L132105) on its own entry point “C” (EP-
C).  Please ensure raw water sampling results indicate the sample location as “SRC-CA 
Well #1”.  Please ensure any treated water sampling representative of water entering the 
distribution system from this well is marked as having been taken at “EP-C Well #1”. 
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The project is approved provided the following conditions are met: 
 

1) Evidence of the applicable water rights required by 
the Water Resources Department is submitted – 
contact Nikki Hendricks with OWRD for further 
assistance with this. 

2) Information that demonstrates how the water system 
meets OAR 333-061-0050(5)(e): “Provisions shall 
be made to alert the water supplier before the 
chlorine supply is exhausted.”  This requirement can be satisfied by either 
installing a low-level chorine alarm or by creating a written procedure to check the 
chlorine tank daily. 

3) A raw water sample tap (prior to chlorine injection) is installed (both raw and 
treated water sample taps are needed); 

4) The chlorine product being used demonstrates it meets NSF Standard 60; 
5) Testing equipment is provided to determine the chlorine residual. The equipment 

must be a DPD-test kit or other EPA approved method of testing. 
6) Test results for SOC, Uranium, Radium 226/228, Gross Alpha, and coliform 

bacteria (presence/absence) are submitted (VOC and IOC results from sampling 
completed 3/6/19 was submitted on 1/7/20).  As required of the spring sources, 
annual raw water source sampling for coliform bacteria taken from a sample tap at 
the wellhead and prior to chlorine injection will be an on-going sampling 
requirement.  Subsequent monitoring will depend upon the results of initial 
monitoring and will generally be as shown in table 1 below. 
 
IOC and VOC Test results from sampling completed 3/6/19 showed the following 
detections: 
 

 Barium = 0.0341 mg/l   (MCL = 2 mg/l) 
 Iron = 0.066 mg/l   (secondary standard = 0.3 mg/l) 
 Magnesium = 14.3 mg/l  
 Sodium = 32.1 mg/l  (secondary standard = 20 mg/l) 
 Fluoride = 0.11 mg/l  (MCL = 10 mg/l) 
 pH = 6.6  (secondary standard = 8.5.  pH less than 7.0 is corrosive) 

 
 

Please note that approval for use of this well is not granted until a “Final Approval” 
letter has been issued. 
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Table 1 – Initial monitoring 
 

Year 2 
 

Year 3 

Year 1 

Sampling to be 
completed prior to Final 

Approval 

Sample by the end of 
the first quarter of 

operation (after Final 
Approval) 

2nd Quarter of 
Operation 

3rd Quarter of operation 

Sample at the Source 
(SRC-CA) 

Sample at the Entry Point (EP-C) to the distribution system served by the new source 

 Coliform 
 Nitrate, Nitrite 
 IOC, VOC, SOC 
 Arsenic 
 Radiological 

including 
uranium, gross 
alpha, and 
radium 226/228 

 Radiological  Radiological if 
detects 

 Radiological if 
detects 

Annual: 
 Nitrate 
 VOC 
 SOC 
 Raw water 

coliform 
(pre-
treatment) 

Sampling at 
Customer Taps 

Tap Sampling in the Distribution System 
(to assess impact of the new well on distribution system corrosion). 

 Lead and 
Copper 

 Sample at 10 
Tier 1 sites (1st 
6-months of 
operation) 

  Sample at 10 
Tier 1 sites 
(second 6 
months of 
operation) 

Reduction to 5 tap 
samples every 3 
years is possible 
depending upon 
results 

 
Documentation and test results submitted to address the above-mentioned items should 
reference Plan Review #77-2019 and can be emailed to me at evan.e.hofeld@state.or.us 
or mailed to:           Attn: Evan Hofeld 
   OHA-Oregon Drinking Water Program 
   PO BOX 14450 
   Portland, OR 97293-0450 
If you have any questions, please feel free to call me at 971-673-0419. 
 
Sincerely, 

 
Evan Hofeld, PE 
Oregon Health Authority – Drinking Water Services 

 
CC: Charles Dice, Falcon Cove Beach Water District 

Annette Pampush, Tillamook County Environmental Health 
 Gail Henrikson, Clatsop County Community Development 
 Nikki Hendricks, Oregon Water Resources Department 

Alice Beals, Oregon Parks and Recreation Department 
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Project Description 
 
The project includes drilling a new well to serve the District as shown below.  
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Geologist Evaluation of the Well Report (adequately constructed into confined aquifer) 
 
The well log (CLAT 55068, Well ID# 
L132105) shows that the well had been 
drilled on January 2, 2019.  Plans show 
the well has a 5 HP, 50-gpm submersible 
pump.  The well house is equipped with 
equipment needed for sodium 
hypochlorite residual disinfectant 
treatment and related controls, meters, and 
valves. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
The proposed site plan was sent to our 
geologist, Tom Pattee, on 5/9/19.  Mr. 
Pattee evaluated the constructed well and 
provided the following comments on 
5/21/19: 
 

 
 
 


